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1. Name

historic Gordomn, Cornelia, Heuse

and/or common Lyddan House

2. Location

street & number 308 Kenwood Hill Road NA not for publication
city, town Louisville NA vicinity of congressional district 3&4
state  Kentucky code 021 county Jefferson code 111
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
—district —— public -X__ occupied —__ agriculture —___ museum
_X_ building(s) _X _private — unoccupied —___ commercial . ___park
—structure  _both — work in progress —— educational —X_- private residence
—site Publg:": Acquisition Accessible —entertainment — religious
— object —_“1h process _X__yes: restricted — government — scientific

— being considered —_ yes: unrestricted ____industrial —___ transportation

— __ho —— military — other:

4. Owner of Property

name Dr. & Mrs. Pat Lyddan

street & number 308 Kenwood Hill Rd.

P A
city,town Louisville N_ vicinity of state Kentucky

5. Location of Legal Description

‘ courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Jefferson County Courthouse

street & number 517 W, Jefferson St.

city, town Louisville state Kentucky

6. Representation in Existing Surveys

tie Kentucky Historic Resources Inventory pag this property been determined elegible? _X yes ___ no

date 1981 —_federal _X state ___county ___ local

depository for survey records ~ Kentucky Heritage Division

city,town  Frankfort state Kentucky




7. Description

Condition Check one Check one
____excellent _ deteriorated ___ unaltered X original site
_X good ____ruins _X altered ____moved date
____fair ——_ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

The Cornelia Gordon House was built in two sections., The front section, ca. 1875, was
a one-story double pile frame structure with an open, central dog trot, and a hipped
roof, which set up on cedar posts. The front porch, rear section and board-and-batten
siding were added in 1894, The porch is a Colonial Revival style porch with a gabled
roof supported by slender classical columns, (Photo 1) The front door frame is eared
and carries a denticulated molding at the top. The door itself is multi-paned and’

has a transom with a sunburst motif. (Photo 3) A simple balustrade surreunds the porch.
All windows are four—over~four double hung, and have denticulated lintélsy. The con~
tinuous cornice along the roof line is wide, canted, and layered, connecting the front
and rear hipped roofs. The siding is board-—and-batten and stained with dark green
creosote stain. The house no longer sets on cedar posts, but rather has a concrete
block foundation and basement, with a garage entrance from Possum Path on the western
side of the house. The only alteration te the exterior of the house occurred when a
window.pn the western side.at the.rear was shortened. .The cexnice was retained and
board-and-batten used to £ill in the space below the window. o

The interior of the house clearly reflects the two building periods. The two rooms on
the western side of the house have been unchanged, but when the front porch was added,
the dog trot was enclosed, creating a central hall, The inside wall of the front room
on the eastern side of the house was removed, creating a parlor reached directly upon
entering the house. A large fireplace with simple mantel and flanking presses is
located in this parlor. (Photo 4) Another narrow hallway lies perpendicular to the
central hall, with a bath and pantry off of the hallway on the west, and small bedroom
at the end of the hall on the east., The bulk of the rear addition consists of a large
dining room at- the end of the main hall, and a kitchen to the west, reached through the
dining room.

All of the window frames, door frames and baseboards are w1de and grooved in both old
and new sections. The basement is reached from the main hallway, down an open, steep
staircase Wthh has a 81mple, elegant balustrade. (Photo 5)

The Cornelia Gordon House is located in the southernmost section of the Clty of Louisville.
on Kenwood Hill, one of two knobs in that area. It is on the north side of the hill in

a sybdivision developed in 1942 It is a strictly residential area of middle to upper-
income families. :



8. Significance

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric ____ archeology-prehistoric ____ community planning ____ landscape architecture ____ religion .

—1400-1499 ____ archeology-historic ____conservation — law —science

—— 1500-1599 ____ agriculture —_economics —_literature —_ sculpture

___1600-1699 _X _architecture ___ education —_ military .. social/

—-1700-1799 ____ art __engineering —__ music humanitarian

X 1800-1899 ____commerce - ___exploration/settiement ___ philosophy ____theater

—1900- —___ communications — industry © v, politics/government ____ transportation
___invention s oo v i .. — other (specify)

Specific dates ., 1875/1894 Builder/Architect W. J. Dodd, 1894 remodeling

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Cornelia Gordon House is architecturally significant due to its board—-and-batten
siding and its physical evolution from summer cottage to year-round residence. It is
one of two remaining cottages left on Kenwood Hill, the other being the Little Loomhouse
(National Register, 1975). There are no other such cottages in the city of Louisville,
nor are there any other board-and-batten residences in the city.

The history of the Cornelia Gordon House is clesely related to the history of Kenwood
Hill itself, known in the n:meteenth century as “Cox 's' Knob" and -to the- Cherokee In-
dians as "Sunshlne Hill)' N T e S

In 1860, Benoni Figg purchased 125 acres of land, including Cox's Knob from John A,
Shrader. Figg had a rock quarrying business on the hill from which he supplied rock
for roadbuilding in southern Jefferson County. The Little Loomhouse cabin was built
in 1870 as an office and caretaker's quarters for Figg's operation, It is located
three lots up Kenwood Hill from the Cornelia Gordon House. In 1876, Charles Gheens,
son-in-law to Figg, gained title to the property and used the Loomhouse as a summer
house,

It is likely that the front section of 308 Kenwood Hill Rd. was constructed ca. 1875

as a summer house, the dog trot providing ample ventilation., It appears that two
structures are represented on the 1879 atlas of Jefferson and Oldham counties, those
being the Loomhouse and 308 Kenwood Hill Road.

Charles Gheens sold the property in 1890 to Kenwood Park Re51dent1al Campany, of which
he was an officer. Sam Stone Bush, secretary of the company, in turn purchased several
parcels of land from the company, including the lot which contained the Loomhouse cabin.
Bush was responsible for the remodeling of the Loomhouse, which included the addition
of board-and-batten siding, construction of "Wisteria Cabin" and "Tophouse" (both in-
cluded in the Loomhouse National Register nomination), construction of his own home at
230 Kenwood Hill Road (National Register, 1979), construction of 316 Kenwood Drive for
his mother, and the remodeling and additions of 308 Kenwood Hill Rd. for his sister,
Cornelia Gordon, and her husband, Fulton Gordon. All of this construction and remodel-
ing was complete by 1894,

Sam Stone Bush was a prominent real estate investor who was responsible for the develop~
ment of large tracts of land in southern Jefferson County. Bush was a close personal
friend of W. J, Dodd, architect., At the time, Dodd was in partnership with Mason Maury.
Maury & Dodd were the architects for Bush's residence. The other two residences were
certainly products of Dodd's designs. They are highly influenced by the 1893 Columbian
Exposition in Chicago. Dodd worked with McKim, Mead and White on the Exposition and
many of his later designs reflect Classical, Beaux-Arts and Colonial Revival styles
prevalent in Chicago.
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Major Bibliographical References

Bush, Mrs. Alexander. Interview, February 5, 1981.

Caroh Annual Directories of the City of Louisyille, 1870-1910,

Louisville Landmarks Commission. "Bush, S, S., Residence." National Register nomination, 1979.
Louisville Landmarks Commission. "The Little Loomhouse." Local Landmark Designation Report, 197!

10. Geographical Data A
Acreage of nominated property __approx. 1 acre (.7 acre)

Quadrangle name _ Louisyille West Quadrangle scale _1: 24,000
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Verbal boundary description and justification e e
The lot is heavily treed and contains no outbuildings. It is approximately .7 acres.
The property is an irregularly shaped lot on the southwest corner of Possum Path and

Kenwood Hill Rd. and is knowh as City Block 62E Lot 43 (See Sanborn Map),

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state NA code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

nameftitle M. A. Allgeier, Researcher

organization Louisyille Landmarks Commission date August 31, 1981
street & number 727 W. Main St. | telephone . (302) ..587-3501 |
city or town Louisville ' strate_KeI}tu%kYu PSS

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

—___national ____state X _Jlocal

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law 89—
665), | hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated
according to the criteria and procedures set forth by the Heritage Conservation and Recreation Service.

State Historic Preservation Officer signature M%L/

GPO 938 835
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The Cornelia Gordon House is important historically and architecturally. The Bush family
was a vital force in the development of the south end of Louisville and were the prime
movers in the extension of the trolly lines out Third St., allowing accessibility to the
center city. Architecturally this house is important due to its very early date for
Colonial Revival detailing, but primarily for the use of board-and-batten siding. No
other known residential structures in the city, other than the Little Loomhouse, are clad
in board-and-batten. Kenwood Hill was a summer retreat in the late nineteenth century,
and these two structures are the only remnants within the city of that rural architecture,
and are therefore important to the architectural history of Louisville. The house is
virtually untouched since its remodeling in 1894, ’



THE CORNELIA GORDON HOUSE
308 KENWOOD HILL RD.
LOUISVILLE, JEFFERSON, KY
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Gordon, Cornelia, House.

308 Kenwood Hill Rd,
Louisville, Jefferson Co., KY
Sanborn Map ~ Sanborn Map Co.
Pelham, NY 1974

Scale: 1"-100°
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